
 

 

   
Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 6 April 2009 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the 
meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:01432 383690 

Email - dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
Herefordshire Council 

 

 



 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  6TH APRIL, 2009 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Community Services 
Scrutiny Committee 

 
To: Councillor 

Councillor 
TM James (Chairman)  
PM Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors DJ Benjamin, GFM Dawe, BA Durkin, DW Greenow, 
KS Guthrie, MAF Hubbard, B Hunt, RH Smith and 
RV Stockton 

  
Co-opted Members Mrs G Churchill (HALC), Mrs J Evans (National Farmers 

Union), Mr PH Hands (Visit Herefordshire) and 
Mr G. Woodman (Hereford and Worcester Chamber of 
Commerce) 

  

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 

place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 
GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare 
against an Agenda item(s) the nature of an interest and whether the 
interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide first whether 
or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They 
will then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 
  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most 
other people in the area.  People in the area include those who live, work 
or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors will also have a 
personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an 
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other 
people in the area.  If they do have a personal interest, they must declare it 
but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   
 
Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each 
Councillor.  What Councillors have to do is ask themselves whether a 
member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think that the 
Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected 

 



 
by it.  If a Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what 
that interest is and leave the meeting room. 

   
4. MINUTES (TO FOLLOW)     
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2009.  
   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09   1 - 4  
   
 To advise Members of the financial position for the Community Services 

budgets for the period to 28 February 2009. 
 

   
7. ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION DIRECTORATES: 

PERFORMANCE FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD TO DECEMBER 
2008   

5 - 16  

   
 To report on the progress towards achievement of targets for 2008-09 

relevant to the Community Services Scrutiny Committee and contained 
within the Environment & Culture and Regeneration Directorates Plans. 

 

   
8. PROGRESS REPORT ON ACTION PLAN FOR THE EDGAR STREET 

GRID (ESG) SCHEME   
17 - 22  

   
 To update Members on progress and delivery of the Action Plan in 

response to the Scrutiny Review of the Edgar Street Grid Scheme (ESG). 
 

   
9. WORK PROGRAMME   23 - 26  
   
 To consider the Committee’s work programme.  
   
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises 
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 

•  Help in developing Council policy 
 

• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 
before and after decisions are taken 

 

• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 

 

• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 

• Review performance of the Council 
 

• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 

• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 

 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 

Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Shirley Coultas, Community Services Accountant (Tel: 01432 261825) 

 

   

 

 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09 

Report By: Director of Resources 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide. 

Purpose 

1. To advise Members of the financial position for the Community Services budgets for 
the period to 28 February 2009.  The report lists the variances against budget at this 
stage in the year and a projected outturn for 2008/09.  

Financial Implications 

2. The current position for Community Services is a projected underspend of £128,000. 
The Community Services Scrutiny Portfolio includes services within the Environment 
& Culture Directorate and the Regeneration Directorate.  Projected underspends of 
£113,000 are within the Regeneration Directorate and £15,000 are within the 
Environment & Culture Directorate. 

 Considerations 

3. The detailed Budget Monitoring Report to 28th February 2009 is attached at Appendix 
I for Members’ consideration. 

4. The total Community Services budget for 2008/09 has increased to £10,057,926 from 
the amount reported to previous meeting, which was £9,953,992.  

5. This increase of £103,934 results from the receipt of budget from The Area Based 
Grant of £181,934 within Community Safety and the reduction of budget of £78,000 
to Leisure budgets. Leisure services have made a capital contribution to purchase 
Gym equipment, which was previously leased of £85,000 and have received an 
increase of £7,000 inflation on Job evaluation from central council budgets. 

       The summary position is set out in the table below. 

2008/09 Budget Projected 
Outturn 

Overspend 
(Underspend) 

Service Area £000 £000 £000 

Community Leisure & HALO 1539 1764 225 

Funding from General Reserves - (200) (200) 

Sub-total Community Leisure & HALO  1564 25 

Cultural Service 3939 3939 0 

Parks, Countryside & PROW 2190 2150 (40) 

Economic & Community Services  2139 2058 (81) 

Management  251 219 (32) 

Community Services Total 10058 9930 (128) 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6TH APRIL 2009 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Shirley Coultas, Community Services Accountant (Tel: 01432 261849) 

 

Community Leisure & HALO 

6. Leisure expenditure is expected to exceed current budget by £200,000 in relation to 
the HALO Job evaluation payment issue.  The Council has a legal requirement to 
meet in full the financial impact of increases in pay of transferred posts affected by 
the single status agreement.  The original central budget was set based on 
assumptions that were reasonable at the time about pay grades.  Over time funding 
has become insufficient as staff have progressed through pay grades. This shortfall 
in budget on job evaluation costs will be met at year end from general fund reserves. 
The treatment of the position in 2009/10 has been reviewed as part of the budget 
setting process 

7.  There is a further expected overspend of £25,000 on Community Leisure relating to 
the maintenance and running costs of the various leisure sites. 

Parks Countryside & PROW 

8. There is an expected overspend of £10,000 on PROW and this is mainly due to 
contract inflation on works carried out by Amey Wye Valley Ltd. There is an expected 
underspend of £50,000 on parks and countrysides in relation to works held back or 
funded from Commuted sums in order to manage budget pressures within the 
Environment & Culture Directorate. 

Economic and Community Services 

9. Economic Development are expected to underspend by £65,000, this being due to 
vacancy savings of £20,000 and the return of unspent grant from the Edgar Street 
Grid project of £45,000. Community Regeneration is forecasting to underspend by 
£16,000 due to savings on grant expenditure. Management is also expected to 
underspend by £32,000 due to a reduction in activity, in order to manage budget 
pressures within the regeneration directorate.  

10. The Chief Executive gave clear instructions that Directorates are to deliver balanced 
budgets. As a result all directorates have put together budget recovery plans with the 
support of Financial Services. The projections for Community services form part of 
the plans for the respective Regeneration and Environment and Culture Directorates.      

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted.  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified 

APPENDIX 

Appendix 1 – Summary Revenue Budget Monitoring Report 2008/09 to 28
th
 February 2009 

 

2



Appendix I

Full Year 

Budget

Actual to 

Period 11

Budget to 

Period 11

Variance 

Overspend/ 

(Underspend) 

to Period 11

Forecast 

Outturn 

Variance 

Overspend 

(underspend)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Arts 592 557 564 (7)

Cultural Services Staff 215 181 179 2

Heritage 583 603 585 18

Leisure Services 198 136 177 (41)

Library Service 1,886 1,579 1,597 (18)

Tourism 465 523 421 102

Total for Cultural Services 3,939 3,579 3,523 56 0

Community Leisure 22 20 20 0

Leisure 1,517 1,656 1,433 223 225

Total for Community Leisure + Halo 1,539 1,676 1,453 223 225

Countryside 1,579 1,301 1,451 (150) (50)

Prow 611 527 534 (7) 10

Total for Parks Countryside & Prow 2,190 1,828 1,985 (157) (40)

Economic Development 770 666 741 (75) (65)

Community Safety 299 349 293 56

Community Regeneration 820 494 514 (20) (16)

Regeneration Programmes 250 216 224 (8)

Total for Social & Economic Regeneration 2,139 1,725 1,772 (47) (81)

Head of Economic and community services 155 127 141 (14) (32)

Head of culture and Leisure 96 120 85 35

Total for Management 251 247 226 21 (32)

Community Services Total 10,058 9,055 8,959 96 72

SUMMARY REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2008/09

PERIOD TO 28TH FEBRUARY 2009

3



4



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
John Eades, Improvement Manager  on 01432 260985 

 

 ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION 
DIRECTORATES: PERFORMANCE FOR THE NINE-
MONTH PERIOD TO DECEMBER 2008 

Report By: Improvement Manager 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on the progress towards achievement of targets for 2008-09 
relevant to the Community Services Scrutiny Committee and contained within the 
Environment & Culture and Regeneration Directorates Plans. This report adopts a 
similar format to that of the Integrated Corporate Performance Report (ICPR). 

Financial Implications 

2. None. 

Background 

3. The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out its objectives, priorities, targets and key 
actions for each of the three years 2008-11. It includes all the indicators and targets 
in the new Local Area Agreement (LAA), as well as those in the Herefordshire 
Community Strategy (HCS). Each Directorate’s plan sets out the contribution, in 
terms of objectives, priorities, targets and key actions, it will make to achieving the 
objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan as well as to the achievement of other 
Directorate priorities. Progress needs to be assessed regularly, together with the 
risks to achievement and the action being taken to address these and improve 
performance. 

4. The overall position shows a further improvement in the number of indicators judged 
to be Green. The provision of data and more information about actions that should 
contribute to improved performance has enabled a rating as Green or Amber for a 
significant number of previously Red rated indicators. 

5. For those indicators where it is possible to show comparative direction of travel the 
position has improved slightly since September, which was itself an improvement on 
July. There has also been an increase in the number of indicators where comparative 
data is available. 

Progress against the Council’s Corporate Plan and Directorate Plans 

6. Following is an analysis of performance against target in relation to both the 
Corporate Plan and Directorate plans. For comparison, September’s figures are in 
brackets: 

AGENDA ITEM 7

5



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
John Eades, Improvement Manager  on 01432 260985 

 

 No. of 
indicators 

On course 
to achieve 
target (or 
establish 
baseline) 

Some 
progress, 
but data not 
available to 
determine 
whether the 
target will 
be achieved 

Not on 
target / no 
activity 
reported 

Corporate Plan (including 
LAA and HCS) 

25 

(25) 

21 

(18) 

3 

(7) 

1 

(0) 

of which     

Economic Development and 
Enterprise theme 

10 

(10) 

7 

(6) 

2 

(4) 

1 

(0) 

Safer and Stronger theme 13 

(13) 

12 

(10) 

1 

(3) 

0 

(0) 

Sustainable communities 
theme 

2 

(2) 

2 

(2) 

0 

(0) 

0 

(0) 

Local Area Agreement (LAA) 12 

(12) 

12 

(9) 

0 

(3) 

0 

(0) 

Herefordshire Community 
Strategy (HCS) 

16 

(16) 

12 

(12) 

3 

(4) 

1 

(0) 

     

All ICPR reported National 
Indicators (NIs) 

20 

(20) 

15 

(18) 

5 

(1) 

0 

(1) 

All Directorate reported NIs 45 

(45) 

30 

(26) 

14 

(19) 

1 

(0) 

     

All ICPR reported indicators 33 

(33) 

25 

(22) 

5 

(10) 

3 

(1) 

All Directorate reported 
indicators 

47 

(47) 

37 

(26) 

17 

(22) 

3 

(1) 

Direction of travel 

7. Analysis of those indicators where it is possible to assess direction of travel is 
detailed below: 

Direction of Travel 

 July September December 

Improving 5 7 9 

No real change 3 3 2 

Deteriorating 1 2 2 

Total 9 12 13 

Headlines 

• Generally positive in respect of Direction of Travel. 

• Changes since September: 

Green from Amber  

- NI 152 “working age people on out of work benefits” 

6



COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
John Eades, Improvement Manager  on 01432 260985 

 

- NI 171 “new business registration rate per 100,00 resident population aged 
16+” 

- NI 30 “re-offending rates of prolific and priority offenders” 

- NI 34 “domestic murder” 

- NI 40 ‘drug users in effective treatment’ 

Red from Amber 

- NI 166 “average earnings of employees in the area” 

- BVPI 126 “domestic burglaries” 

Robbery remains at Red. 

Overall performance 

8. There continues to be little substantive performance information for a significant 
number of indicators, since many of them are part of the new National Indicator set 
and have as their target that baselines should be established this year. However, 
reporting of both data and activity against indicators has improved significantly 
between July and December. 

9. Three indicators are now judged Red: 

• Average earnings – although earnings in Herefordshire have increased the gap 
between the County and the West Midlands has increased 

• Domestic burglaries – this is a former Best Value Performance Indicator where the 
latest data is similar to the position last year and the likelihood of achieving the 
target challenging 

• Robberies - this is a former Best Value Performance Indicator where performance 
to September was worse than for the same period last year. 

10. Details of the indicators reflecting each of the Corporate Plan themes are given in 
Appendix A. Within each theme indicators are separated into those that are included 
in the ICPR and other, related, indicators that are included in the Directorate Plans. 

Customer satisfaction 

11. Some services in both Directorates have had the benefit of regular monthly customer 
satisfaction surveys since March 2008, with results being available from June based 
on the new directorate structures. Coverage has gradually increased in the 
Environment and Culture Directorate, but only covers the Planning and 
Transportation division in the Regeneration Directorate at present. The survey is 
currently limited to requests for service which are received either through Info by 
Phone or through the highways inspection system. A group, from across both 
Directorates, is currently reviewing current arrangements for establishing customer 
satisfaction with the aim of encouraging a more consistent and systematic approach 
to the collection and analysis of customer data. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT subject to any comments which Members may wish to make, the 
report be noted. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

7



8



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

1
5
2

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 o
u
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

8
.6
%

(t
o
 M
a
y
)

E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 S
o
ci
a
l 
F
u
n
d
e
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
ct
e
d
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

to
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 6
4
 w
o
rk
le
ss
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
ct
iv
it
y
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 2
0
0
 w
o
rk
le
ss
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 

co
m
m
is
si
o
n
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ce
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

E
x
p
lo
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
p
p
ro
a
ch
 t
o
 a
cc
e
ss
 A
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
 

W
e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 
'C
o
n
n
e
ct
io
n
s 
to
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s'
 F
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
R
Z
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 t
h
o
se
 w
o
rk
le
ss
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 f
u
rt
h
e
st
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

jo
b
 m

a
rk
e
t

W
o
rk
le
ss
n
e
ss
 G
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
ct
io
n
s 
to
 

co
o
rd
in
a
te
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 k
e
y
 l
o
ca
l 
a
g
e
n
ci
e
s,
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 

th
is
 t
o
 a
 s
u
b
 r
e
g
io
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
ch
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
lo
ca
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s.

A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 A
re
a
 B
a
se
d
 G
ra
n
t 
to
 m

in
im
is
e
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
f 

e
co
n
o
m
ic
 d
o
w
n
tu
rn
 o
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s 
to
 d
iv
e
rs
if
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 n
e
w
 g
ra
n
t 
sc
h
e
m
e
s

- 
D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 R
u
ra
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
se
 (
D
A
R
E
) 
G
ra
n
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
e
 s
e
n
t 
to
 A
W
M
 b
y
 m

id
 D
e
ce
m
b
e
r.

- 
T
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
o
w
a
rd
s 
p
re
-s
ta
rt
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
e
s,
 w
o
m
e
n
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s,
 a
n
d
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
ch
 g
ro
u
p
s.

A
A

G

D
a
ta
 s
h
o
w
s 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

1
6
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

L
e
a
rn
e
rs
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 L
e
v
e
l 
1
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
it
e
ra
c
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

5
8

3
2

W
e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 
P
u
b
lic
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 S
k
ill
s 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e

S
k
ill
s 
P
le
d
g
e
 h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 b
y
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 H
o
sp
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
st
, 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 P
C
T
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l(
P
S
T
).
  
W
h
ic
h
 

in
cl
u
d
e
s;
 

• 
A
ct
iv
e
ly
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 w
o
rk
 t
o
w
a
rd
s 
a
n
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
ce
sh
ip
 (
L
e
v
e
l 
2
) 
o
r 

a
d
v
a
n
ce
d
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
ce
sh
ip
 (
L
e
v
e
l 
3
) 
in
 a
n
 a
re
a
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 o
u
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

• 
A
ct
iv
e
ly
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
to
 g
a
in
 t
h
e
 

sk
ill
s 
a
n
d
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
tu
re
 

e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
o
u
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

• 
A
ct
iv
e
ly
 e
n
co
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
u
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 
to
 a
cq
u
ir
e
 

b
a
si
c 
lit
e
ra
cy
 a
n
d
 n
u
m
e
ra
cy
 s
k
ill
s,
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

su
p
p
o
rt
 w
o
rk
 t
o
w
a
rd
s 
th
e
ir
 f
ir
st
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 

th
a
t 
is
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 o
u
r 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
.

• 
D
e
m
o
n
st
ra
b
ly
 r
a
is
e
 o
u
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s’
 s
k
ill
s 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
ci
e
s 

to
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
’s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
v
e
st
in
g
 

in
 e
co
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
ll 
co
n
tr
a
ct
s,
 F
E
, 
T
tG
, 
E
S
F
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
, 
th
a
t 
in
cl
u
d
e
s 
th
is
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
.

A
A

A

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le

1
6
2

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

L
e
a
rn
e
rs
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
n
 E
n
tr
y
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

n
u
m
e
ra
c
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

S
e
e
 p
o
in
ts
 f
o
r 
N
I 
1
6
1
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
ly
 a
b
o
v
e
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

1
6
3

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r

 T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
ill
 

b
e
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
In
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 S
k
ill
s
 (
D
IU
S
) 

a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
s
 

c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r 
d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

O
ff
ic
e
 f
o
r 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

(O
N
S
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 (
A
P
S
).
  
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 A
u
g
u
s
t.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 n
e
w
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r,
 a
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
lle
g
e
 o
f 
T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 a
n
d
 T
ra
in
 t
o
 

G
a
in
, 
a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 l
e
a
rn
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
ty
 i
n
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
le
a
rn
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
a
y
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 

q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 2
5
%
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 w
a
rd
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

9



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

1
6
4

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

S
e
e
 p
o
in
ts
 f
o
r 
N
I 
1
6
3
  
a
b
o
v
e
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

1
6
5

Y
e
s

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
4
 o
r 

h
ig
h
e
r 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

T
h
e
 L
if
e
lo
n
g
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 h
a
s 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

cl
e
a
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
st
u
d
e
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
le
a
rn
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
io
n
 

p
a
th
w
a
y
s 
a
n
d
 i
s 
ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 a
re
a
s 
w
h
e
re
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

p
ro
g
re
ss
io
n
 d
o
e
s 
n
o
t 
o
cc
u
r.
  
  
T
h
e
 H
ig
h
e
r 
E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
u
p
 a
re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
ce
ss
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

a
 b
id
 t
o
 s
e
cu
re
 a
 u
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 f
a
ci
lit
y
 f
o
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

1
6
6

Y
e
s

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 e
a
rn
in
g
s
 o
f 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

0
.8
9
:1

£
3
8
4
.4
0

>
0
.8
9
:1

>
£
3
8
4
.4
0

0
.8
7
:1

£
3
8
9
.4
0

P
ro
g
re
ss
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 E
S
G
 s
ch
e
m
e

- 
R
e
p
h
ra
si
n
g
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 A
W
M
 a
n
d
 H
C
.

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
o
th
e
rw

a
s 
a
s 
k
e
y
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 l
o
ca
ti
o
n

- 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
P
h
a
se
 2
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 -
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

u
n
it
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 M
a
g
a
zi
n
e

E
st
a
b
lis
h
 L
iv
e
/W

o
rk
 u
n
it
s 
o
n
 M
o
d
e
l 
F
a
rm

 -
 R
o
ss
-o
n
-W

y
e

- 
M
a
st
e
rp
la
n
 f
o
r 
si
te
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 0
9
.

- 
S
co
p
in
g
 o
f 
su
rv
e
y
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm

is
si
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

R
u
ra
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
se
 G
ra
n
ts

- 
N
e
w
 R
E
G
 S
ch
e
m
e
 l
a
u
n
ch
e
d
 o
n
 1
st
 O
ct
o
b
e
r 
0
8
.

- 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m

ic
ro
 e
n
te
rp
ri
se
s 
a
n
d
 f
a
rm

 h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
s.

- 
O
v
e
r 
3
0
0
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s 
in
 t
h
re
e
 m

o
n
th
s 
to
 J
a
n
 0
9
.

A
A

R

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 e
a
rn
in
g
s 
h
a
v
e
 

in
cr
e
a
se
d
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
, 
th
e
 g
a
p
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

e
st
 M
id
la
n
d
s 

h
a
s 
w
id
e
n
e
d

1
7
1

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
e
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
 

p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
g
e
d
 1
6
+

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
.1

(2
0
0
6
)

T
a
rg
e
t 
to
 

b
e
 s
e
t 

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9

5
9
.2
%

(2
0
0
7
)

R
u
ra
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 G
ra
n
ts
 (
R
E
G
):

- 
N
e
w
 R
E
G
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o
n
 1
s
t 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
0
8
.

- 
W
ill
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
ic
ro
-e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
rm

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
.

- 
F
ir
s
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 0
9
.

H
o
m
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
:

- 
H
o
m
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
s
ta
rt
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 0
8
.

- 
R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 i
n
to
 h
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 0
8
.

- 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
0
8
.

In
w
a
rd
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
:

- 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
0
8
.

A
A

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t 
a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le

1
7
2

Y
e
s

%
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 a
n
 

a
re
a
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

g
ro
w
th

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

(H
e
re
fo
rd
) 
a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 H
u
b
s
 (
L
e
o
m
in
s
te
r 
- 
o
p
e
n
; 
R
o
s
s
 i
n
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
g
e
).
  
A
ls
o
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
ru
ra
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
re
m
is
e
s
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

Y
e
s

N
u
m
b
e
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 i
n
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

in
te
n
s
iv
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
ie
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
0
,9
2
3

>
1
0
,9
2
3

M
o
d
e
l 
F
a
rm

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

- 
T
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p
ro
ce
ss
 f
o
r 
L
iv
e
/W

o
rk
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r 
co
m
m
e
n
ce
d
 i
n
 

A
u
g
u
st
 0
8
.

- 
M
a
st
e
r 
p
la
n
n
e
rs
 f
o
r 
e
n
ti
re
 s
it
e
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
8
.

- 
S
co
p
in
g
 o
f 
su
rv
e
y
s 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rm

is
si
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

In
w
a
rd
 I
n
v
e
st
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

- 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ce
 i
n
 O
ct
o
b
e
r 
0
8
.

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
R
o
th
e
rw

a
s 
a
s 
a
 k
e
y
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 l
o
ca
ti
o
n

- 
A
cc
e
ss
 R
o
a
d
 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 0
8
.

- 
P
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
o
rk
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ce
d
 o
n
 P
h
a
se
 T
w
o
 -
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

u
n
it
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 M
a
g
a
zi
n
e
.

A
A

A

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

O
u
tt
u
rn
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

O
th
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

10



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

1
5
1

O
v
e
ra
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
ra
te

T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
  
v
ia
 O
N
S
’ 
A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
it
h
 a
n
 8
 m
o
n
th
 t
im
e
 

la
g
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

7
8
.7
0
%

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 
th
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 E
S
G
; 
R
o
th
e
rw
a
s
 a
n
d
 M
o
d
e
l 
F
a
rm

 i
n
 R
o
s
s
-o
n
-W

y
e

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 W

e
e
k
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 1
7
th
 N
o
v
 

w
it
h
 a
n
 e
x
h
ib
it
io
n
 a
t 
th
e
 S
h
ir
e
 H
a
ll 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
A

A

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le

1
5
3

W
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
la
im
in
g
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

w
o
rs
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s

D
a
ta
 i
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
y
 

J
o
b
c
e
n
tr
e
 P
lu
s
 w
it
h
 a
 6
 m
o
n
th
 

ti
m
e
 l
a
g

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 "
W
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
" 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 E
U
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
.

A
ls
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
ta
rt
 u
p
 v
ia
 e
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 w
e
e
k
 a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 l
in
k
.

A
A

A

A
ct
iv
it
y
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 

to
w
a
rd
s 
ta
rg
e
t,
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le

1
7
3

P
e
o
p
le
 f
a
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
*

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 "
W
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
" 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 E
U
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 A
ls
o
 D
A
R
E
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
g
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
u
t 
o
f 
w
o
rk
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

1
7
4

S
k
ill
s
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs

T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

L
S
C
 f
ro
m
 a
 b
ie
n
n
ia
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
. 

T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 i
s
 d
u
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 6
th
 F
o
rm

 C
o
lle
g
e
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 G
ro
u
p
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 s
k
ill
s
 g
a
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
.

G
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

P
a
ri
sh
 p
la
n
s:
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
e
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
ra
n
si
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
 s
e
t 
u
p
 

a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
co
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
th
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
  
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
H
A
L
C
, 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 F
ir
st
 a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 
to
 

su
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
rt
-u
p
s 
a
n
d
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 p
la
n
s.
  

P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
ls
: 
P
o
w
e
r 
o
f 
W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 O
rd
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

th
a
t 
w
ill
 h
e
lp
 q
u
a
lif
y
in
g
 P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
ls
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

n
e
e
d
s 
o
f 
co
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s.
  

P
A
C
T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s:
 n
e
x
t 
ro
u
n
d
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s 
a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 (
1
2
 

a
re
a
s)
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

P
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
s:
  
D
e
sp
it
e
 c
o
n
si
d
e
ra
b
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
ff
o
rt
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

b
y
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l,
 P
o
st
 O
ff
ic
e
 L
im
it
e
d
 d
e
ci
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
lo
se
 

2
0
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
s 
in
 c
o
u
n
ty
 a
n
d
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
ce
 9
 o
u
tr
e
a
ch
 "
se
rv
ic
e
s"
. 

A
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
w
  
th
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
s 
to
 f
in
d
 w
a
y
s 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a
ss
o
ci
a
te
d
 s
h
o
p
s.
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

si
n
ce
 t
h
e
 P
O
L
 a
n
n
o
u
n
ce
m
e
n
t,
 3
 m

o
re
 p
o
st
 o
ff
ic
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 

(t
e
m
p
o
ra
ri
ly
) 
cl
o
se
d
.

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 b
o
x
e
s:
 1
0
4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
0
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 b
o
x
e
s 
"s
a
v
e
d
" 

fr
o
m
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
ce
n
t 
co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
ca
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l.
 I
ss
u
e
 n
o
w
 i
s 
to
 g
e
t 
B
T
 p
a
y
p
h
o
n
e
s 
to
 

m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 b
o
x
e
s 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
.

N
e
w
 L
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
: 
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 S
u
st
a
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
A
ct
 p
ro
ce
ss
, 
lo
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 

su
b
m
it
 p
ro
p
o
sa
ls
 b
y
 J
u
ly
 3
1
st
 2
0
0
9
.

S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

4
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

%
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

lo
c
a
lit
y

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
.

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

G
G

G

11



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

6
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 H
o
u
se
h
o
ld
 S
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
se
d
 t
o
 s
e
t 
th
e
 b
a
se
lin
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
it
h
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m
 i
s 
a
ls
o
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
O
W
M
 t
o
 

lo
o
k
 a
t 
le
ss
o
n
s 
le
a
rn
t 
fr
o
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

a
ct
io
n
s 
fo
r 
e
m
e
rg
in
g
 a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
. 
 

T
h
e
 V
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 
G
o
o
d
 P
ra
ct
ic
e
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 

d
ra
ft
 f
o
rm

 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
, 
w
it
h
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
 

T
h
ir
d
 s
e
ct
o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 i
n
 r
e
ce
ip
t 
o
f 
so
m
e
 A
B
G
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
to
 

a
ss
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 

in
cr
e
a
se
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 s
u
b
je
ct
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
A
B
G
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
b
e
in
g
 s
e
cu
re
d
. 
  

H
V
A
 a
n
d
 C
V
A
 L
e
d
b
u
ry
 r
e
ce
iv
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
n
v
e
st
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

S
L
A
s 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 V
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
C
e
n
tr
e
 a
ct
iv
it
y
.

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

9
Y
e
s

Y
e
s

U
s
e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
7
.9
0
%

B
a
se
lin
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
ct
iv
e
 P
e
o
p
le
 S
u
rv
e
y
 (
A
p
ri
l-
O
ct
o
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 

h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 –
 4
7
.9
%
, 
ta
rg
e
t 
is
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 5
0
.9
%
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
. 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
si
s 
o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 p
la
n
n
e
d
.

P
ro
je
ct
 p
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
B
e
lm
o
n
t 
L
ib
ra
ry
. 

W
o
rk
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ta
rt
 2
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

P
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
si
g
n
 f
o
r 
R
o
ss
 l
ib
ra
ry
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 
o
f 
R
e
a
d
in
g
 L
ib
ra
ry
 c
a
rd
 d
e
si
g
n
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 –
 

w
in
n
in
g
 d
e
si
g
n
s 
b
e
in
g
 p
ri
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 e
n
d
 o
f 
Ja
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
.

S
u
cc
e
ss
 o
f 
su
m
m
e
r 
R
e
a
d
in
g
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

a
n
a
ly
se
d
.

A
G

G

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d

1
1

Y
e
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
rt
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
6
.4
0
%

B
a
se
lin
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
ct
iv
e
 P
e
o
p
le
 S
u
rv
e
y
 (
A
p
ri
l-
O
ct
o
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 

h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 –
 4
6
.4
%
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 4
9
.5
%
 

fo
r 
2
0
1
0
-1
1
.

D
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
si
s 
o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 p
la
n
n
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
rt
s 
S
u
p
e
rm

a
rk
e
t 
ru
n
 a
t 
n
o
 c
o
st
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l.

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
2
-y
e
a
rs
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 r
e
ce
iv
e
d
 f
o
r 
C
re
a
ti
v
it
y
 B
ri
g
h
t 
sp
a
ce
s 

p
ro
je
ct
.

S
u
cc
e
ss
fu
l 
D
e
st
in
a
ti
o
n
 J
a
p
a
n
 p
ro
je
ct
, 
D
e
st
in
a
ti
o
n
 C
h
in
a
 

p
ro
je
ct
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
n
n
e
d
.

D
e
ta
ile
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
d
y
 I
m
a
g
e
 p
ro
je
ct
 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

(d
u
e
 f
o
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
).

A
rt
 o
f 
L
if
e
 –
 p
ilo
t 
p
ro
je
ct
 i
n
 C
a
n
a
l 
R
o
a
d
 D
a
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 i
s 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

A
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

1
7

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

A
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
1

Y
e
s

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 

c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e

D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 b
ie
n
ia
lly
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

In
it
ia
l 
a
n
a
ly
si
s 
o
f 
P
la
ce
 S
u
rv
e
y
 e
x
p
e
ct
e
d
 b
y
 9
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
, 
w
it
h
 

p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 r
e
su
lt
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 e
n
d
 M
a
rc
h
.

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy
 t
a
sk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

e
e
ts
 m

o
n
th
ly
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
ce
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 u
se
s 
it
s 
sh
a
re
d
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
to
 t
a
rg
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

h
o
ts
p
o
ts
. 
A
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
re
ce
n
t 
a
ct
iv
it
y
 i
s 
th
e
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
ic
e
n
si
n
g
 t
e
a
m
 i
n
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 f
o
r 

“O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 C
h
ri
st
m
a
s 
P
re
se
n
ce
”.

T
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

e
a
ch
 P
A
C
T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 t
o
 l
o
ca
l 
co
n
ce
rn
s.

W
e
st
 M
e
rc
ia
 P
o
lic
e
 d
a
ta
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s 
th
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
p
o
rt
s 

o
f 
a
n
t-
so
ci
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
is
 f
a
lli
n
g
.

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

12



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

3
0

Y
e
s

R
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
 o
f 
p
ro
lif
ic
 

a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 (
P
P
O
)

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

6
4

<
5
2

N
o
 d
a
ta

2
7

3
0

F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 t
o
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

co
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s 
w
a
s 
ca
lc
u
la
te
d
 l
o
ca
lly
 a
s 
6
4
 (
2
 m

e
a
n
 c
o
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s 

p
e
r 
P
P
O
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 1
0
 P
P
O
's
 i
n
 c
u
st
o
d
y
).
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 

h
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
e
re
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
6
1
 

co
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s 
a
n
d
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
's
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s 
to
 r
e
d
u
ce
 

th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
co
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s 
to
 n
o
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 4
9
.

1
5
/0
1
/0
9
 -
 L
a
te
st
 d
a
ta
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 f
ro
m
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
J-
T
ra
ck
 s
y
st
e
m
 

fo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 P
P
O
 c
o
h
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
P
A
C
S
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te
 s
h
o
w
s 
th
e
re
 a
re
 a
 t
o
ta
l 
o
f 
3
0
 c
o
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
s 
(1
 m

e
a
n
 

co
n
v
ic
ti
o
n
 p
e
r 
P
P
O
) 
w
it
h
 7
 P
P
O
's
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 c
u
st
o
d
y
. 
 B
a
se
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
se
 f
ig
u
re
s 
it
 i
s 
a
n
ti
ci
p
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
ch
ie
v
e
d
.

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 P
P
O
 s
ch
e
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
te
n
si
v
e
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 t
o
 

a
ll 
se
le
ct
e
d
 P
P
O
s 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e
 o
f 
re
d
u
ci
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
-

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
in
g
 l
e
a
d
 a
 p
u
rp
o
se
fu
l 
lif
e
.

R
A

G
� ���

� ���
L
a
te
st
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s 
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

3
9

Y
e
s
 

(L
o
c
a
l)

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
h
a
rm

 r
e
la
te
d
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
s
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0
0

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
9
9

1
2
6
0

2
7
2
.8

(@
 J
u
n
e
)

2
6
5
.3

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 d
a
ta
 i
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
p
p
ro
x
 8
 w
e
e
k
s 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 

e
n
d
.

D
ra
ft
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
u
t 
to
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 N
e
w
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
 b
a
se
d
 a
t 
A
&
E
 a
t 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

H
o
sp
it
a
l.

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
s 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
je
ct
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
h
a
rm

 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
 

m
e
ss
a
g
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 e
.g
. 
F
re
sh
e
rs
 F
a
ir
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 S
ix
 

F
o
rm

 C
o
lle
g
e
, 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
llb
e
in
g
 E
v
e
n
t.

R
G

G
� ���

� ���
L
a
te
st
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s 
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

4
0

Y
e
s

D
ru
g
 u
s
e
rs
 i
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

4
9
4

5
0
4

D
u
e
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r

D
u
e
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry

5
3
3

T
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
is
 i
s 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 N
D
T
M
S
 i
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 l
a
te
st
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
ca
n
 f
u
lly
 

b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
, 
th
e
re
 w
ill
 a
lw
a
y
s 
b
e
 a
 3
-m

o
n
th
 l
a
g
. 
Q
1
 d
a
ta
 w
a
s 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 N
D
T
M
S
 Q
tr
 2
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 w
h
e
re
 

th
e
re
 w
e
re
 5
3
3
 P
D
U
's
 r
e
co
rd
e
d
 a
s 
b
e
in
g
 i
n
 e
ff
e
ct
iv
e
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

in
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
st
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
 p
e
ri
o
d
 0
1
/0
7
/0
7
 t
o
 3
0
/0
6
/0
8
.

P
h
a
rm

a
cy
 N
e
e
d
le
 E
x
ch
a
n
g
e
 P
ilo
t 
S
ch
e
m
e
 w
a
s 
la
u
n
ch
e
d
 1
st
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
  
T
h
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
s 
a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
a
n
s 
to
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 

p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c 
d
ru
g
 u
se
rs
.

D
A
S
H
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
a
n
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t 
m
a
tc
h
in
g
 

cu
rr
e
n
t 
se
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
  
H
C
S
D
P
 

P
ro
je
ct
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 A
ct
io
n
 P
la
n
 

to
 e
n
g
a
g
e
  
h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
ch
 d
ru
g
 u
se
rs
.

S
p
e
ci
a
lis
t 
H
e
p
 C
 c
lin
ic
 h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
 (
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 c
lie
n
ts
 w
e
n
t 
to
 B
ir
m
in
g
h
a
m
).

R
A

G
� ���

O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
st
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
h
a
s 
b
e
co
m
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
w
s 
th
a
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 i
s 
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 

a
n
d
 b
e
tt
e
r 
th
a
n
 l
a
st
 y
e
a
r

4
7

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

9
9
a

P
e
o
p
le
 k
ill
e
d
 o
r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
3
3
 (
2
0
0
7
)
1
2
9
 (
2
0
0
8
)

3
6
 

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

5
6

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

8
4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

C
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 1
2
8
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

G
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t

4
8

9
9
b

C
h
ild
re
n
 k
ill
e
d
 o
r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
 (
2
0
0
7
)

1
1
 (
2
0
0
8
)

4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

4

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

6

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

C
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 1
1
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

G
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t

9
9
c

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 

in
ju
re
d
 i
n
 r
o
a
d
 t
ra
ff
ic
 c
o
lli
s
io
n
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

7
1
3

<
7
1
3

3
0
1

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

J
u
n
e
)

3
9
5
 

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

A
u
g
u
s
t)

5
7
2

(J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r)

C
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 6
3
2
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

R
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t

1
2
6

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 

p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

3
.9

<
3
.9

0
.8

2
3
.1

D
o
m
e
st
ic
 B
u
rg
la
ry
 r
e
m
a
in
s 
lo
w
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 w
it
h
 l
e
ss
 t
h
a
n
 

o
n
e
 b
u
rg
la
ry
 p
e
r 
d
a
y
 a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 c
o
u
n
ty
. 
 A
 s
lig
h
t 

in
cr
e
a
se
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 s
p
a
te
 o
f 
d
is
tr
a
ct
io
n
 b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s 
a
n
d
 

a
rr
e
st
s 
h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
se
. 
  
T
h
e
 l
o
w
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
D
o
m
e
st
ic
 b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
N
o
t 
In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
’ 
ca
m
p
a
ig
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

is
 d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
cr
im
e
.

A
A

R
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 

th
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r,
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 

o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 

re
m
a
in
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g

1
2
7
a

V
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 

1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
5
.6

<
1
5
.6

3
.7

7
.6

1
0
.9

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
io
le
n
t 
cr
im
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
d
 s
lig
h
tl
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
. 
 H
C
S
D
P
 a
n
d
 W

M
C
 h
a
v
e
 

re
ce
n
tl
y
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 s
ca
n
s 
a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
se
s 
cr
im
e
 t
y
p
e
s 
a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
in
g
 i
ss
u
e
s 
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
cl
u
d
e
d
 

v
io
le
n
t 
cr
im
e
.

G
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t

13



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

1
2
7
b

R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

0
.2

<
0
.2

0
.1

0
.2

(2
9
 

ro
b
b
e
ri
e
s
)

0
.2

R
o
b
b
e
ry
 f
ig
u
re
s 
co
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 a
t 
a
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 

a
n
d
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 a
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 o
n
e
 p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
. 
R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s 
in
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 a
re
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 o
f 
a
 m

in
o
r 
n
a
tu
re
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 

sm
a
ll 
it
e
m
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
ca
sh
, 
p
u
rs
e
s 
a
n
d
 m

o
b
ile
 p
h
o
n
e
s.
 A
ll 

ro
b
b
e
ri
e
s 
a
re
 d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 a
s 
a
 h
ig
h
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
y
 a
 s
p
e
ci
a
lis
t 
u
n
it
.

A
R

R
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 w
o
rs
e
 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

1
2
8

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
 c
ri
m
e
s
 

p
e
r 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

in
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

5
<
5

1
.2

2
.5

(4
5
0
 

v
e
h
ic
le
 

c
ri
m
e
s
)

3
.6

L
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
th
e
ft
s 
o
f 
a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s 
u
n
ch
a
n
g
e
d
 f
ro
m
 p
re
v
io
u
s 

q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
 i
n
 t
h
e
ft
s 
o
f 
fu
e
l 
a
n
d
 

ca
ta
ly
ti
c 
co
n
v
e
rt
e
rs
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s 
a
 r
e
ce
n
t 
tr
e
n
d
 i
s 
b
e
in
g
 s
e
e
n
 

a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 U
K
. 
P
o
lic
e
 a
re
 u
si
n
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
m
e
a
su
re
s 
to
 t
a
ck
le
 

th
is
, 
in
cl
u
d
in
g
 d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
s 
e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 A
N
P
R
 

(A
u
to
m
a
ti
c 
N
u
m
b
e
r 
P
la
te
 R
e
co
g
n
it
io
n
) 
so
ft
w
a
re
, 
ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 

su
sp
e
ct
e
d
 c
ri
m
in
a
ls
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 C
u
st
o
m
s 
&
 E
x
ci
se
 a
n
d
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 f
o
rc
e
s.

G
A

A
� ���

� ���
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 

m
a
rg
in
a
lly
 w
o
rs
e
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

2
2
5

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

8
1
.8

>
8
1
.8

N
o
 d
a
ta

8
1
.8

8
1
.8

R
A

A
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 s
h
o
w
s
 n
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r

Y
e
s

O
v
e
ra
ll 
c
ri
m
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
1
,1
7
2

<
1
1
,1
7
2

3
,8
5
0

5
,6
6
2

8
,1
0
3

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll 
cr
im
e
s 
a
re
 a
ff
e
ct
e
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
cr
im
e
 

ty
p
e
s,
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 a
n
y
 i
n
cr
e
a
se
s 
in
 o
th
e
r 
cr
im
e
s 
w
ill
 a
ff
e
ct
 t
h
is
 

m
e
a
su
re
.

A
A

A
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

� ���

P
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
a
te
ly
, 
la
te
s
t 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 s
im
ila
r 
to
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r

Y
e
s

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
e
d
in
g
 t
ra
ff
ic
 

a
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
 i
n
 y
o
u
r 
lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

R
e
d
u
ct
io
n
s 
in
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ro
a
d
 a
cc
id
e
n
ts
 (
N
IS
 4
7
 a
n
d
 4
8
) 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.

D
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

L
if
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
.

R
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

Y
e
s

F
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 a
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 P
la
c
e
 S
u
rv
e
y

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

B
a
se
lin
e
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
la
ce
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
.

H
C
S
D
P
 R
e
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
 G
ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
th
ly
. 
 R
e
a
ss
u
ra
n
ce
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 p
la
n
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 d
e
v
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic
it
y
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
ch
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
a
st
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 e
g
: 

H
e
re
fo
rd
 J
o
u
rn
a
l 
"w

ra
p
" 
in
 A
u
g
u
st
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 "
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 i
s 
a
 

sa
fe
 p
la
ce
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 f
u
n
" 
ca
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.

R
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

1
0
4

2
Y
J

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
: 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 w
h
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

d
a
y
s
 a
n
d
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 (
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t)

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
0
0
%

T
o
 m
e
e
t 
o
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 

9
5
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

T
h
is
 m

e
a
su
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 
to
 b
e
 o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
se
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
9
5
%
. 
 Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 d
a
ta
 i
s 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 6
 

w
e
e
k
s 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
e
n
d
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 e
x
p
e
ct
 Q
3
 d
a
ta
 m

id
-

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
.

G
G

G
� ���

� ���
� ���

L
a
te
s
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 a
t 
th
e
 

h
ig
h
e
s
t 
le
v
e
l 
a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le

7
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 t
h
ri
v
in
g
 t
h
ir
d
 

s
e
c
to
r

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
ch
 o
f 
th
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 C
o
m
p
a
ct
 i
n
 J
a
n
 

2
0
0
8
, 
w
o
rk
 h
a
s 
p
ro
g
re
ss
e
d
 o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

C
o
d
e
s 
o
f 
G
o
o
d
 P
ra
ct
ic
e
. 
 V
o
lu
n
te
e
ri
n
g
 C
o
d
e
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

in
 d
ra
ft
, 
w
it
h
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
ct
io
n
 p
la
n
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
; 

th
e
 W

o
rk
in
g
 T
o
g
e
th
e
r 
C
o
d
e
 o
n
 c
o
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s 
n
o
w
 i
ts
e
lf
 o
u
t 
to
 

co
n
su
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
C
o
d
e
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 o
n
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t,
 t
a
k
in
g
 i
n
to
 a
cc
o
u
n
t 
th
e
 g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
ct
ic
e
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
d
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
ci
a
l 
ca
re
 s
e
ct
o
r.
  
 T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 m

a
k
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
n
v
e
st
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 l
o
ca
l 
th
ir
d
 

se
ct
o
r 
in
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s 
a
g
a
in
st
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 

st
ra
te
g
ic
 i
n
v
e
st
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 S
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

to
 l
o
ca
l 
v
cs
 i
s 
a
ls
o
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
 S
tu
d
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

co
m
m
is
si
o
n
e
d
 o
n
 a
d
v
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
cr
o
ss
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
to
 i
n
fo
rm

 

a
n
 A
d
v
ic
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
to
 i
n
cl
u
d
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 T
h
ir
d
 

S
e
ct
o
r.

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

O
th
e
r 
re
la
te
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

14



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

1
0

V
is
it
s 
to
 m

u
se
u
m
s 
a
n
d
 g
a
lle
ri
e
s 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
8
%

B
a
se
lin
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
ct
iv
e
 P
e
o
p
le
 S
u
rv
e
y
 (
A
p
ri
l-
O
ct
o
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
) 

h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
si
s 
o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
. 
A
n
im
a
te
u
r 
p
ro
je
ct
 f
o
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 M
u
se
u
m
 a
n
d
 A
rt
 

G
a
lle
ry
 –
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 r
e
su
lt
s 
o
f 
fu
ll 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

su
cc
e
ss
fu
l 
fi
rs
t 
st
a
g
e
 b
id
. 
M
u
se
u
m
 o
n
 t
h
e
 M
o
v
e
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
T
o
u
r 

–
 6
,3
8
1
 v
is
it
s 
(v
e
n
u
e
s 
in
cl
u
d
e
d
 4
0
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 5
 d
a
y
 c
a
re
 

ce
n
tr
e
s)
.

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

1
5

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.3
3
1

0
.7
6
8

N
o
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
H
C
S
D
P
 -
 d
a
ta
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d

R
A

A
D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
6

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

3
.5
6
5

5
.2
6
3

N
o
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
H
C
S
D
P
 -
 d
a
ta
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
  
T
h
e
 l
o
w
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
d
o
m
e
st
ic
 b
u
rg
la
ri
e
s 
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
N
o
t 
In
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
’ 
ca
m
p
a
ig
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 

is
 d
e
si
g
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
ss
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
cr
im
e
.

R
A

A
D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
8

A
d
u
lt
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

N
o
 d
a
ta

Q
tr
3
 d
a
ta
  
n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
U
n
ti
l 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
.

R
A

A

2
0

A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w
it
h
 i
n
ju
ry
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

3
.1
6
7

4
.2
1
5

N
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
se
t 
b
y
 W

M
C
 a
s 
n
o
t 
co
n
si
d
e
re
d
 a
 t
ie
r 
1
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
lly
 b
y
 W

M
C
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
g
a
in
st
 s
h
o
rt
, 
m
e
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

 

tr
e
n
d
s 
a
n
d
 r
is
k
 a
ss
e
ss
e
d
 a
s 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 2
0
0
8
-0
9
 e
st
. 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 i
s 
1
0
6
8
, 
th
e
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s 
th
e
re
fo
re
 

1
0
6
8
/1
7
8
4
0
0
x
1
0
0
0
 =
 5
.9
9

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

2
2

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 t
a
k
in
g
 

re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

o
f 
th
e
ir
 c
h
ild
re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
4

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 

p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 a
n
ti
so
ci
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
5

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

lo
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
d
e
a
lt
 w
it
h
 a
n
ti
-

so
ci
a
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
7

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
lo
ca
l 

co
n
ce
rn
s 
a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-s
o
ci
a
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
ca
l 
co
u
n
ci
l 
a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

2
8

K
n
if
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.0
7
8

0
.0
9
0

N
o
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
H
C
S
D
P
 -
 d
a
ta
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
  
 T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 1
4
 k
n
if
e
 c
ri
m
e
 o
ff
e
n
ce
s 
in
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 A
p
ri
l 
to
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 (
1
0
6
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
o
rc
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 t
im
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
).
  
E
st
. 

se
ri
o
u
s 
k
n
if
e
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s 
2
8
/1
7
8
4
0
0
x
1
0
0
0
 =
 

0
.1
5
7
. 
 N
o
 l
o
ca
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
se
t 
b
y
 W

M
C
 a
s 
n
o
's
 a
re
 l
o
w
 f
o
r 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 a
n
d
 a
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
g
a
in
st
 s
h
o
rt
, 

m
e
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 t
re
n
d
s 
a
n
d
 r
is
k
 a
ss
e
ss
e
d
 a
s 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 
 

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

2
9

G
u
n
 c
ri
m
e
 r
a
te
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
.0
2
8

0
.0
3
9

N
o
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 -
 d
a
ta
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
  
 C
o
rr
e
ct
io
n
 t
o
 Q
tr
1
  

fi
g
u
re
s 
- 
sh
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 0
.0
2
2
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
0
.1
6
8
 a
s 
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s 
th
is
 w
a
s 
fo
r 
th
e
 W

e
st
 M
e
rc
ia
 F
o
rc
e
 a
s 
a
 w
h
o
le
. 
  

E
st
. 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s 
1
0
. 
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 e
st
. 
g
u
n
 c
ri
m
e
 

ra
te
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 i
s 
1
0
/1
7
8
4
0
0
x
1
0
0
0
 =
 0
.0
5
6
. 
  
 N
o
 l
o
ca
l 

ta
rg
e
t 
se
t 
a
s 
b
y
 W

M
C
 a
s 
n
o
's
 a
re
 l
o
w
 f
o
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
g
a
in
st
 s
h
o
rt
, 
m
e
d
iu
m
 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 

te
rm

 t
re
n
d
s 
a
n
d
 r
is
k
 a
ss
e
ss
e
d
 a
s 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

3
2

R
e
p
e
a
t 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
ti
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
  
H
C
S
D
P
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r
e
p
e
a
t 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
D
V
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

w
it
h
 W

M
C
. 
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 W

o
m
e
n
's
 A
id
 a
n
d
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

A
b
u
s
e
 F
o
ru
m

R
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

B
a
se
lin
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
la
ce
 s
u
rv
e
y
; 

re
su
lt
s 
a
re
 a
n
ti
ci
p
a
te
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
.

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy
 t
a
sk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 m

e
e
ts
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
ce
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 u
se
 i
ts
 s
h
a
re
d
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
to
 t
a
rg
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

h
o
ts
p
o
ts
.

T
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

e
a
ch
 P
A
C
T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 t
o
 l
o
ca
l 
co
n
ce
rn
s

15



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
e
d

R
e
a
so
n
 f
o
r 
ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts

N
IS

L
A
A

H
C
S

C
P

B
V
P
I
A
P
A

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

Ju
ly

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r

D
e
ce
m
b
e
r

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e

In
d
ic
a
to
r

L
e
a
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te

2
0
0
7
-0
8
 

O
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
0
8
-0
9
 

T
a
rg
e
t

L
a
te
s
t 
O
u
tt
u
rn

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g

D
ir
e
ct
io
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l

3
3

A
rs
o
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
 d
a
ta
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

a
) 
1
.3
5
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 b
) 
4
.2
0
  

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
&
3
 d
a
ta
 

a
) 
2
.1
2

b
) 
5
.7
7

T
h
e
se
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
re
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
ct
u
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s 
o
f 
3
8
 

d
e
lib
e
ra
te
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s 
a
n
d
 1
0
3
 d
e
lib
e
ra
te
 s
e
co
n
d
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s 

fr
o
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 &
 W

o
rc
e
st
e
r 

F
ir
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
sc
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
rs
o
n
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 ,
 a
 n
e
w
 e
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
 a
ss
is
ta
n
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 

fo
r 
H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 h
a
s 
n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
  
  

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

3
4

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 –
 m
u
rd
e
r

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

0
0

N
o
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 a
re
a
 -
 d
a
ta
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d

R
A

G

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
t 

m
a
x
im
u
m

3
8

D
ru
g
-r
e
la
te
d
 (
C
la
s
s
 A
) 

o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 r
a
te

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 s
ti
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.

R
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

4
1

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s 
o
f 
d
ru
n
k
 o
r 
ro
w
d
y
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
s 
a
 p
ro
b
le
m

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

C
u
lt
u
re

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
cy
 t
a
sk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s 
b
e
e
n
 

e
st
a
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 m

e
e
ts
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
ce
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 u
se
 i
ts
 s
h
a
re
d
 r
e
so
u
rc
e
s 
to
 t
a
rg
e
t 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

h
o
ts
p
o
ts
.

T
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
v
e
s 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
 

e
a
ch
 P
A
C
T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 r
e
sp
o
n
d
 t
o
 l
o
ca
l 
co
n
ce
rn
s

G
G

G

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e

4
2

P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
d
ru
g
 u
s
e
 o
r 

d
ru
g
 d
e
a
lin
g
 a
s
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

D
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

L
if
e
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
. 
 W

o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
ru
g
 f
o
ru
m
s
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
.

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

4
9

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
la
te
d
 f
a
ta
lit
ie
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-f
a
ta
l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie
s
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry
 c
h
e
c
k
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
 d
a
ta
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

a
) 
7
6
.2
2
  
  
  
 

b
) 
0
.0
0
  
  
  
  

c
) 
1
.6
8

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

1
&
2
&
3
 d
a
ta
 

a
) 
1
2
2
.7
4

b
) 
0
.0
0

c
) 
5
.0
4

T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 f
a
ta
lit
ie
s 
fr
o
m
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s 
in
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
ir
st
 n
in
e
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 
2
0
0
8
-0
9
. 
 T
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s 
o
f 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

a
re
 b
a
se
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
ct
u
a
l 
fi
g
u
re
s 
o
f 
2
1
9
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 f
ir
e
s 
a
n
d
 9
 i
n
ju
ri
e
s 

fr
o
m
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 H
e
re
fo
rd
 &
 W

o
rc
e
st
e
r 
F
ir
e
 

a
n
d
 R
e
sc
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 f
o
cu
si
n
g
 o
n
 h
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
a
ch
 "
a
t 
ri
sk
" 
g
ro
u
p
s.
  
  

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
4
3

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 s
e
tt
le
d
 a
n
d
 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
rd
e
r 
o
r 
lic
e
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

8
1
%

7
8
%

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 =
 9
8
 l
iv
in
g
 i
n
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 1
2
1
 

re
v
ie
w
s 
=
 8
1
%
 a
s 
a
t 
e
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
ta
rg
e
t.
  
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 f
o
r 
W
e
st
 M
e
rc
ia
 

re
g
io
n
 t
o
 3
0
 S
e
p
t 
a
ch
ie
v
e
d
 7
8
%
.

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

1
4
4

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
t 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
rd
e
r 
o
r 
lic
e
n
c
e

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

N
o
 d
a
ta

5
3
%

5
4
%

H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
 =
 5
2
 i
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 9
9
 r
e
v
ie
w
s 
=
 5
3
%
 a
s 

a
t 
e
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s 
cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
 c
o
u
rs
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

ta
rg
e
t.
  
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 f
o
r 
W
e
st
 M
e
rc
ia
 r
e
g
io
n
 t
o
 3
0
 S
e
p
t 

a
ch
ie
v
e
d
 4
7
%

R
A

A

D
a
ta
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
u
t 
n
o
 

d
e
ta
il 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 y
e
t 
o
f 
p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
r 
ta
rg
e
t

Y
e
s

E
a
se
 o
f 
a
cc
e
ss
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

M
a
p
p
in
g
 s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
P
a
ri
sh
 C
o
u
n
ci
ls
  
b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

co
n
ju
n
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 i
n
fo
rm

 

th
e
 d
a
ta
b
a
se
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
lla
te
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 1
0
 k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
se
h
o
ld
 S
u
rv
e
y
. 
  

M
u
lt
i 
u
se
 c
e
n
tr
e
s 
in
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 L
e
d
b
u
ry
, 
L
e
o
m
in
st
e
r 
a
n
d
 

P
e
te
rc
h
u
rc
h
. 
 P
e
te
rc
h
u
rc
h
 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
se
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 -
 e
a
rl
y
 y
e
a
rs
 w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
 o
u
tr
e
a
ch
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 

ce
n
tr
e
; 
lib
ra
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 

R
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

Y
e
s

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
L
if
e
 -
 %

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
ce
rt
a
in
 a
sp
e
ct
s 
n
e
e
d
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
:

b
. 
A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 d
e
ce
n
t 
h
o
u
si
n
g

c.
 J
o
b
 p
ro
sp
e
ct
s

d
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
cr
im
e

e
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
tr
a
ff
ic
 c
o
n
g
e
st
io
n

f.
 W

a
g
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 l
o
ca
l 
co
st
 o
f 

liv
in
g

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

D
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
la
ce
 S
u
rv
e
y
 i
s 
to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 a
 b
ie
n
n
ia
l 

b
a
si
s 
b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
in
 a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
 w
it
h
 g
u
id
a
n
ce
 i
ss
u
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s 
a
n
d
 L
o
ca
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
a
se
lin
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.

A
ct
iv
it
ie
s 
re
la
te
d
 t
o
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
ce
 m

e
a
su
re
s 

im
p
a
ct
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
, 
su
ch
 a
s:

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 L
o
ca
l 
P
o
lic
e
 o
n
 a
d
d
re
ss
in
g
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
cr
im
e
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 '
 N
o
t 
in
 H
e
re
fo
rd
sh
ir
e
'

P
o
si
ti
v
e
 p
u
b
lic
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ce
 t
o
 b
u
si
n
e
ss
 s
e
ct
o
r 

ce
n
tr
e
d
 o
n
 e
n
te
rp
ri
si
n
g
 B
ri
ta
in
 a
w
a
rd

A
G

G

A
ct
iv
it
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

sh
o
u
ld
 i
m
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

b
a
se
lin
e

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

IC
P
R
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
st
a
b
lis
h
 b
a
se
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

E
st
a
b
lis
h
 b
a
se
lin
e
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9

16



 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009
  

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
Natalia Silver, Head of Economic and Community Services on 01432 260732. 

esgcoverupdate0.doc  

 PROGRESS REPORT ON ACTION PLAN FOR THE EDGAR 
STREET GRID (ESG) SCHEME 

Report By: Head of Economic and Community Services 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on progress and delivery of the Action Plan in response to the 
Scrutiny Review of the Edgar Street Grid Scheme (ESG). 

Financial Implications 

2.  There are no direct financial implications of this report. 

Background 

3. The Community Services Scrutiny Committee conducted a review of the ESG 
scheme as a major project taking place in Herefordshire which will have significant 
impact on the county.  The interviews for the review took place on the 30th 
September, with a subsequent meeting on the 2nd October for Members to formulate 
key considerations, themes and recommendations. 

4. All of the recommendations were accepted by the Cabinet Member as a reasonable 
assessment of consideration and concerns arising from the ESG scheme.  This was 
reported to this Committee on 12 December with an accompanying action plan.  

5. The attached Action Plan gives progress on targets and milestones as of 25 March 
2009.   

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the progress to achieve the action plan be noted.   
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
• None 

AGENDA ITEM 8

17



18



 
1

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
E
d
g
a
r 
S
tr
e
e
t 
G
ri
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

U
p
d
a
te
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
1
 

 
T
h
e
 E

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 –
 T

h
a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 “
o
n
e
 c
it
y
” 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 i
n
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fo
r 
a
n
d
 l
in
k
a
g
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 a
re
a
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
•
 

U
s
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

 “
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
” 
in
 a
n
y
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
, 
P
R
, 

e
tc
.,
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 t
h
ri
v
in
g
 

a
n
d
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
a
lly
 p
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 

•
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 c
it
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 

s
ta
rt
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 
w
it
h
 
lin
k
 
ro
a
d
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
 

•
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 d

e
s
ig
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 
c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 a

n
d
 

h
is
to
ri
c
 
c
e
n
tr
e
 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
a
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 
to
 
B
e
n
 
H
a
m
ilt
o
n
-B

a
ill
ie
 
to
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

•
 

M
a
k
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 W

id
e
m
a
rs
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 l
in
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 
C
it
y
 
C
e
n
tr
e
 
w
it
h
 
a
g
re
e
d
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
fo
r 
d
e
ta
ile
d
 
d
e
s
ig
n
, 

c
o
s
ts
/i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
y
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
. 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
o
 a
 d
e
g
re
e
. 
 E

S
G
 s
ti
ll 
re
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 

in
 p
a
rt
 a
s
 h
is
to
ri
c
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

 P
la
n
n
in
g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
ro
a
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

d
u
e
 f
o
r 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 i
n
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

  D
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 

D
e
s
ig
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 

w
it
h
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

fo
r 
W
id
e
m
a
rs
h
 S
tr
e
e
t.
 

 

  R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
2
 

 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
–
 T

h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
fu
ll 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 b

o
th
 
to
 e

n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
re
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p

e
o
p
le
 o

f 
H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 
to
 
e
n
s
u
re
 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 
w
it
h
 
a
ll 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 
 
E
S
G
 
to
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
w
it
h
 
it
s
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
(b
o
th
 
g
iv
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
re
c
e
iv
in
g
) 
a
n
d
 
to
 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 
a
n
d
 
u
s
e
 
o
th
e
r 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 
m
e
th
o
d
s
 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

b
o
th
 
fo
rm

a
l 
a
n
d
 
in
fo
rm

a
l,
 
w
ill
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
a
s
 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
s
. 

 
S
p
e
c
if
ic
 
e
v
e
n
ts
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 h
u
b
, 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
e
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 n
e
w
 a
re
a
, 
th
e
 r
e
ta
il 
q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
lo
o
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 a
re
 a
ll 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 b
y
 E

S
G
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

e
a
rl
y
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
2
0
0
9
. 
 O

th
e
r 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

ra
is
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

ill
 c
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
ta
ll 
in
 t
h
e
 B
u
tt
e
r 
M
a
rk
e
t,
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
th
e
 E
S
G
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 w

e
re
 h
e
ld
 b
y
 E

S
G
 

o
n
 
th
e
 
2
8
th
 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 
(b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
re
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
) 

a
n
d
 
2
9
th
 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 
(t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 
h
u
b
).
 
 
T
h
e
 

B
u
tt
e
rm

a
rk
e
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
d
is
p
la
y
 
is
 
n
o
w
 
in
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 
T
h
e
 
E
S
G
 
w
e
b
s
it
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

re
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
w
 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
a
 
F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 

lin
k
. 

 
E
S
G
 
e
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to
 
b
e
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 

19



 
2

•
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 f
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 
a
s
 
th
e
s
e
 
re
a
c
h
 
th
e
 
s
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 
o
f 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 
T
h
is
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 
o
u
t 
b
y
 
E
S
G
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 p

ri
o
r 
to
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
ft
e
r 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
, 
a
ll 
to
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 

a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

a
h
e
a
d
 
o
f 

th
e
 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 
o
f 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
3
 

 
T
o
w
n
 C

e
n
tr
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
S
tu
d
y
 –
 T
h
a
t 
th
e
 T
o
w
n
 C

e
n
tr
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
S
tu
d
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
y
 S
ta
n
h
o
p
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
is
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 v
e
ri
fi
e
d
 o
r 
c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
•
 

S
ta
n
h
o
p
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 t
o
 p
re
p
a
re
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

S
tu
d
y
 t
o
 a
c
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
. 

•
 

H
e
re
fo
rd
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
to
 v
e
ri
fy
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

p
u
b
lic
 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 

th
e
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
 T

h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
f 
a
n
 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 
o
f 
th
e
 
S
tu
d
y
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
e
x
p
e
rt
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 

 T
o
 b
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
s
u
it
a
b
le
 t
im

e
. 
  

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
4
 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
s
 U

s
u
a
l 
–
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 l
e
a
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
n
y
 d
o
w
n
 t
u
rn
 i
n
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 d
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
•
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 H

e
re
fo
rd
 C

it
y
 P

a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 c
re
a
te
 a
 p
la
n
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 m

a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 d
u
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C

a
th
e
d
ra
l 
C
lo
s
e
. 

‘O
n
 
Y
o
u
r 
D
o
o
rs
te
p
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 

fo
r 
lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 
A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
. 
 U

s
e
 o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
s
h
o
p
s
 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rt
is
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w

it
h
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 u
p
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 

in
 M

a
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
5
 

 
L
in
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
rt
y
a
rd
 –
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 c
re
a
ti
n
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 
lin
k
a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
rt
y
a
rd
 C

e
n
tr
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 A
rt
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

v
e
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 
le
is
u
re
 o
ff
e
r 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 c
it
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

 
•
 

T
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 i
n
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 o
ld
 L
iv
e
s
to
c
k
 M

a
rk
e
t 
s
it
e
. 

D
e
s
ig
n
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
is
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

20



 
3

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
6
 

 
H
e
re
fo
rd
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 -
 T
h
e
 H

e
re
fo
rd
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr
e
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
s
 a
 t
e
n
-y
e
a
r 
a
m
b
it
io
n
 

is
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 o
u
tl
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

T
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 o
n
 1
2
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
7
 

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 -
 F
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 f
u
lly
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 v
ia
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 E
S
G
 s
it
e
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

T
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 1
2
 D

e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

 

 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
8
 

 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
G
ro
u
n
d
 –
 F
o
r 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
to
 s
u
b
m
it
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 

a
n
d
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 F
o
o
tb
a
ll 
G
ro
u
n
d
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

T
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 o
n
 2
9
th
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

   

21



22



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 6 APRIL 2009 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer,  on 01432 383690 

 

 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 

Report By: Assistant Chief Executive – Legal and 
Democratic 

 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

 

Purpose 

1 To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

 

Financial Implications 

2 None  

 

Background 

3 A report on the Committee’s current work programme will be made to each of the 
scheduled quarterly meetings of this Scrutiny Committee.  A copy of the outline work 
programme is attached at Appendix 1. 

4 The programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the 
Vice-Chairman and the Director of Regeneration and the Director of Environment & 
Culture in response to changing circumstances.  

5. Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider
 calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

6. Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact both the Director of Regeneration and the 
Director of Environment & Culture or Democratic Services to log the issue so that it 
may be taken in to consideration when planning future agendas or when revising the 
work programme. 

Recommendation 

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Strategic 
Monitoring Committee. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

23



24



 

 
COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
WORK PROGRAMME PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION ON 6 APRIL 2009 

 

 

29 June 2009 

 • Budget 

• Performance Monitoring  

• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• PACT Meetings 

• Charter for Herefordshire Councils 

• Public Rights of Way 

• Consider the Executive’s response to the Scrutiny Review 
of Tourism 

• Consider the Executive’s response to the Scrutiny review 
of the Community and Safety Drugs Partnership 

Scrutiny Reviews Herefordshire’s Future Economic Policy 

5 October 2009 

Items • Budget 

• Performance Monitoring  

• Edgar Street Grid – Update  

• Economic Downturn 

Scrutiny Reviews  

 7 December 2009 

 12 April 2010 

 
Further additions to the work programme will be made as required. 

25



26


	Agenda
	
	6 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2008/09
	Revenue Budget Monitoring 2008~9 Appendix 1

	7 ENVIRONMENT & CULTURE AND REGENERATION DIRECTORATES: PERFORMANCE FOR THE NINE-MONTH PERIOD TO DECEMBER 2008
	Appendix A

	8 PROGRESS REPORT ON ACTION PLAN FOR THE EDGAR STREET GRID (ESG) SCHEME
	ESG action plan update March 09

	9 WORK PROGRAMME
	Community Services Work Prog at April 09


